
    

Notice of a meeting of 
 

Joint Standards Committee Hearings Sub-Committee 
 
To: Councillors Pavlovic and Rowley BEM (CYC Members) 

Councillor Rawlings (Parish Council Member) 
 
Mr Oram (Independent Person) 
 

Date: Friday, 2 September 2022 
 

Time: 10.00 am 
 

Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West 
Offices (F045) 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Appointment of Chair    
 To appoint a Member to chair the hearing. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare any 

disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they 
might have in respect of business on this agenda, if they have 
not already done so in advance on the Register of Interests. 
 

3. Exclusion of Press and Public    
 To consider whether to exclude the Press and Public during the 

deliberations and decision-making at the end of the hearing. 

 
4. Complaint against Councillor Cuthbertson 

(City of York Council)   
(Pages 1 - 118) 

 To consider a complaint made against the above Member of City 
of York Council, which has been referred to the Hearings Sub-
Committee for determination following an investigation. 
 

5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 



 

Democratic Services officer responsible for this meeting: 
 
Name: Fiona Young 
Contact details: 

 Telephone – (01904) 551027 

 E-mail – fiona.young@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 
 



 

 

  

 

   

 

Standards Hearing Sub Committee 2 September 2022 

 

Complaint against Councillor Cuthbertson (City of York Council) 

 

Complainants:  Councillor Mark Guilford (Haxby Town Council) 

Subject Councillor: Councillor Cuthbertson (City of York Council) 

Investigator:  Stephen Pearson, Freeths Solicitors 

 

Background 

The complaint was brought by Haxby Town Councillor Mark Guilford, 

against Councillor Cuthbertson of City of York Council. 

The complaint relates to the following allegations: 

 The Councillor is alleged to have behaved in a disrespectful 

manner towards Councillor Guilford, having described the Town 

Council as a “dysfunctional” organisation which was being “run like 

a wild west town” and verbally attacking Councillor Guilford; 

 

 It is alleged that Councillor Cuthbertson demanded to speak at a 

Town Council meeting and when the Chairman refused permission 

he described Councillor Guilford as being a “dictator” and 

“undemocratic” as part of what Councillor Guilford regards as a 

politically motivated campaign against the Town Council; 

 

 Within a meeting of the Town Council Recreation and Open 

Spaces Committee he is alleged to have “erupted in a fit of anger”, 

threatening to file complaints and making insults, whilst insisting 

that, as a City Councillor, he had “oversight” over Town Council 

decisions; 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 

 It is alleged that Councillor Cuthbertson took over a meeting with 

Yorkshire Water concerning local complaints over 

sewerage/flooding, in order to secure maximum publicity for 

himself and to undermine the Town Council. 

 

The Investigating Officer, Stephen Pearson of Freeths Solicitors, was 

asked to investigate the complaint.  The Complaint and Mr Pearson’s 

report can be found at Annex A.  City of York Council’s [previous] Code 

of Conduct can also be found at Annex A.  It will be noted from the 

report that Mr Pearson is of the opinion that Councillor Cuthbertson did 

breach the Code of Conduct by failing to treat Councillor Guilford and 

other Members of Haxby Town Council and the Clerk with respect in 

breach of paragraph 3(1) of the Code.  Councillor Cuthbertson does not 

accept this opinion. 

The Investigation Report has been shared with the Parties.  The draft 

report was presented to the Joint Standards Committee Assessment 

Sub Committee on 9th August 2022, where the Sub-Committee referred 

the matter to a hearing so that the opinion arrived at by the Investigator 

and the views of Councillor Cuthbertson could be further explored. 

 

The Code of Conduct for City of York Council 

As required by the Localism Act 2011, City of York Council has adopted 

a Code of Conduct which sets outs the conduct expected of Councillors 

when acting as such.  The Code of Conduct for City of York Council 

appears at Annex A.  It should be noted that for this complaint, the Code 

pre October 2021 was the relevant Code of Conduct for City of York and 

it is this Code which the Investigator has considered.  Particularly 

relevant to this complaint are the following: 

 3(1) – “You must treat others with respect” 

 

 3(3) – “You must not bully or intimidate any person, or attempt to 

bully or intimidate them” 

 

 3(7) – “You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could 

reasonably be regarded as bringing the Council into disrepute, or 

your position as a Councillor into disrepute”  

 

Page 2



 

The Hearing Process 

The Joint Standards Committee has approved a procedure for hearings 

which can be found at Annex B.  In line with that procedure the 

complainant and subject member have been asked to indicate whether 

they intend to attend the hearing, to identify facts which they say are in 

dispute, and provide their views as to whether any part of the hearing 

should be in private.  These responses have been shared with the 

Panel. 

As part of this pre-hearing activity Councillor Cuthbertson has provided 

additional emails and a position statement which can be found at Annex 

C. 

Mr Pearson has requested the attendance of one witness, Councillor 

Carmichael. 

 

Issues to be determined 

Has Councillor Cuthbertson breached City of York Council’s Code of 

Conduct? 

In the event that the Sub Committee finds that the Code has been 

breached, it will need to determine whether a sanction should be 

imposed and if so, what sanction. 

 

Implications 

Financial  

Not applicable to this report.  

Human Resources (HR)  

Not applicable to this report. 

Equalities  

The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on Local Authorities, 

including the presence of a clear and concise Code of Conduct which 

prohibits unlawful discrimination and gives the public confidence in 

Councillors.  Ensuring that the Code of Conduct is maintained meets 

the Nolan Principles and supports the prohibition.   

Page 3



 

Legal  

As detailed within the report. 

Crime and Disorder, Information Technology and Property  

Not applicable to this report.  

 

 

Author & Chief Officer 

Responsible for the 

report:  

Janie Berry 

Director of Governance &  

Monitoring Officer 

Tel:  01904 555385 

  

 

  

 
Report 

Approved 

√ Date 24th August 

2022 

    

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s): 

Wards Affected:  Haxby Ward All  

 

For further information please contact the author of the report 

Background Papers:  

 Annex A – Investigating Officers report 

 Annex B – Hearing Procedure 

 Annex C – Position Statement and additional material provided by 

Councillor Cuthbertson 

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



P
age 79



P
age 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex B 

 

CITY OF YORK COUNCIL STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
HEARING PROCEDURE 
 
General Matters 
 
1.  In this procedure the term “interested parties” is used to cover the 

complainant, the subject member and the investigating officer. The 
interested parties will all be invited to attend the hearing as 
potential witnesses. 

 
2.  The Independent Persons will also be invited to attend the hearing 

in an advisory, non-voting capacity. Their views will be sought as 
to whether the evidence establishes a breach of the code of 
conduct and, if so, as to what if any penalty should be imposed.  

 
3. The Hearing Panel will be made up of members of the Standards 

Committee and there will normally be three members. The Panel 
will be supported by the Monitoring Officer or his representative 
and a democratic services officer. 

 
4. The meeting will be open to the press and public unless 

confidential or exempt information is likely to be disclosed. The 
Standards Committee considers that in general the public interest 
in seeing that complaints relating to Councillors are handled 
properly will outweigh any considerations relating to the privacy of 
the Councillor concerned but each case will be considered on its 
own merits including consideration of the privacy of other parties. 

 
5.  The hearing will normally follow the procedure set out below but 

the Chair has the discretion to vary it at any time. Such a variation 
may be considered where, for example, the Chair believes that 
doing so will be in the interests of fairness or help in establishing 
the facts of the case. 

 
6.  It will not usually be necessary for the Subject Member to be 

represented at a hearing but he or she may choose to arrange 
such representation which may be by a solicitor,  barrister or 
another person. 

 
7. The Panel may take legal advice at any time during the hearing or 

during its deliberations. The substance of any advice given to the 
Panel will normally be shared with the parties. 

 

Page 107



Annex B 

 

  
 
Preliminary procedures 
 
8.  Prior to the hearing commencing the Panel may meet privately to 

review the material presented and to agree the main lines of 
enquiry.  

 
9. At the start of the hearing, the Chair will arrange introductions of 

the Panel, its Officers, the Independent Persons and the interested 
parties. The Chair will briefly explain the procedure which the 
Panel will follow in the conduct of the hearing. The Chair will 
confirm that each interested party has seen the final report of the 
investigating officer and has had the opportunity to engage in the 
pre hearing procedures. 

 
10. The Monitoring Officer will identify whether the pre hearing 

procedures have identified any significant disagreements about the 
facts contained in the Investigating Officer’s report. The Panel will 
record the agreed facts and establish the facts in dispute which 
they will be required to rule upon.  

 
11.  If a party raises an issue which has not been raised previously 

then that party shall be required to give a full explanation to the 
Panel as to why is was not raised earlier.  The Panel may then: 

          
a. Consider whether or not to allow the issue that has been 

raised to be dealt with at the hearing 
 
b.  Consider whether the hearing should be adjourned for further 

investigations to take place. 
 

 
Determining factual disputes 
 
12. If there are disputed facts which the Panel consider relevant to 

establishing whether the Code has been breached or as to the 
seriousness of the breach then, the Panel will adopt an inquisitorial 
approach in establishing the facts. The Chair will invite members of 
the Panel to ask questions of the interested parties or any other 
potential witness present.  The Monitoring Officer may also ask 
questions. 

 

Page 108



Annex B 

 

13. Once a witness has answered questions from the Panel then the 
Chair will ask the interested parties whether there are other issues 
which ought properly to be raised with the witness. The Chair (or 
another Member) may put any such issues to the witness him or 
herself or may allow the relevant party to ask questions directly.  

 
14.  The Panel must reach a decision as to the facts it finds to be 

proven. The Panel must also make a decision as to whether the 
proven facts (including those which are agreed) show a breach of 
the code of conduct. Depending on the complexity of the case the 
Panel may consider each of those issues separately or deal with 
them together. In either case the Chair will invite the parties to 
make representations on each matter before the Panel reaches its 
decision. 

 
Panel deliberations 
 
15.  When the Panel is considering its finding of facts and whether 

those facts amount to a breach of the Code of conduct it will do so 
in private but in the presence of the Monitoring Officer, the 
Independent persons and the Democratic Services officer. 

 
16.  At the conclusion of the Panel’s deliberations, the Chair will 

publicly announce the Panel’s findings as to the facts and as to 
whether those facts show a breach of the code of conduct.  The 
Panel will give reasons for their findings. It will be normal practice 
to share the substance of any advice given by the Monitoring 
Officer and Independent persons at this stage. 

 
Determining Sanctions 
 
17. If the Panel concludes that the Subject Member has failed to 

comply with the Code of Conduct, the Chair will invite 
representations from the interested parties as to what action, if 
any, it should take. 

 
18.  The Panel will then consider whether to impose a sanction, and, if 

so, what sanction to impose and when that sanction should take 
effect. It will do so in private but in the presence of the Monitoring 
Officer, the Independent persons and the Democratic Services 
officer. 

 
19. The sanctions available to the Hearings Panel are to –  

Page 109



Annex B 

 

 

 Censure the Councillor;  
 

 Formally report its findings to the City Council or Parish 
Council for information;  

 

 Recommend to the Councillor’s Group Leader (or in the case 
of un-grouped Councillors, recommend to Council or to 
Committees) that he/she be removed from any or all Panels 
or Sub-Committees of the Council;  

 

 Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the Councillor 
be removed from the Cabinet, or removed from particular 
Portfolio responsibilities;  

 

 Recommend to Council that the Leader be removed from 
Office (if it is the Leader’ conduct that is being considered) 

 

 Instruct the Monitoring Officer to [or recommend that the 
Parish Council] arrange training for the Councillor;  

 

 Remove [or recommend to the Parish Council that the 
Councillor be removed] from all outside appointments to 
which he/she has been appointed or nominated by the 
authority [or by the Parish Council];  

 

 Withdraw [or recommend to the Parish Council that it 
withdraws] facilities provided to the Councillor by the 
Council, such as a computer, website and/or email and 
Internet access. 

 
20. The Hearings Panel has no power to suspend or disqualify the 

Councillor or to withdraw Councillors’ basic or special responsibility 
allowances. If the Panel decides to withdraw facilities from the 
Councillor it must ensure that the Councillor is not thereby 
prevented from undertaking his/her representative duties. 

 
21.  The Chair will publicly announce the decision of the Panel. The 

substance of any further advice given by the Independent Person 
and Monitoring Officer will also be shared. Written notice of the 
findings of the Panel will be given as soon as is reasonably 
practicable to the Subject Member. They will also be placed on the 

Page 110



Annex B 

 

council’s website. If the complaint was against the Subject Member 
as a parish councillor, written notice of the findings of the Panel will 
be sent to the clerk to the parish council.   

 
Other action 
 
22.  The Panel may also consider making any recommendations to the 

Council concerned with a view to promoting higher standards of 
conduct among its members. 

 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex C 

 

Standards Hearing – 10.00 on Friday 2nd September 2022 
  
Statement by Cllr Ian Cuthbertson 
 
As has been explained, I cannot be present at this hearing because of a 
lengthy dentist’s appointment – this is part of some root canal work that 
is currently being undertaken. 
 
I would like to draw to the hearing panel’s attention that, although the 
suggestion is made in some statements that I have frequently attended 
meetings of Haxby Town Council, that was only true up to June 2019.  
At that point I was given a responsible position as Executive Member for 
Children, Young People and Education and from then, I could not attend 
at all regularly because of the time needed to fulfil that role. 
 
Despite suggestions in the statements of Cllr Guilford and Cllr Wyatt, 
since the start of the 2019 municipal year I have only been able to attend 
HTC meetings in June, July and September 2019, and in August and 
November 2021.   There was also the meeting of the R&OSC on 12th 
August 2021, which is actually the only meeting being referred to in this 
complaint.  It is evident that there is a good deal of inconsistency 
between the statements of the three different witnesses, to the extent 
that there is uncertainty about the exact date of the meeting and what is 
alleged to have taken place.   There is however, consistency between 
the statements of Cllr Pearson, myself and ex-Cllr Beverley effectively 
negating what is said by others. 
 
The complainant and his witnesses give no evidence of misbehaviour, 
bad-tempered language or language ‘which cannot be repeated’ at any 
other HTC meeting held since May 2019 and there have been no other 
complaints of such behaviour on my part.  Indeed, ex-Cllr Crawford 
describes my conduct and interaction with HTC councillors as being 
‘exemplary’. In contrast, she goes on to give a quite damning description 
of Cllr Guilford’s own ‘recurring breaches of the Code of Conduct’ and 
his ‘overbearing and disrespectful behaviour’, which resulted in him 
being stood down from all committees for some months in 2017. 
 
I would be grateful if these points could be taken into account at the 
hearing. 
 
Cllr Ian Cuthbertson 
20th August 2022 

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex C 

 

From: Cllr. I. Cuthbertson <cllr.icuthbertson@york.gov.uk>  
Sent: 22 August 2022 08:09 
To: Berry, Janie <Janie.Berry@york.gov.uk>; Stephen Pearson <Stephen.Pearson@freeths.co.uk> 
Subject: Complaint against me by Cllr M Guilford - Confidential: Code of Conduct (238689/3) 
[FREETHS-ACTIVE.FID3064443] 
Sensitivity: Confidential 
 

Hello Janie and Mr Pearson 
 
Attached please find copies of an e-mail sent to me by Mark Scott and 
an e-mail exchange with Cllr Guilford in June and July 2019, which 
relate to my explanation of events leading to a conversation with Cllr 
Guilford following an attack by Cllr Richardson at a meeting of HTC on 
17th June 2019. 
 
Both e-mails underpin the explanation that I sent to Mr Pearson on 19th 
May and the exchange with Cllr Guilford directly refutes his assertion (at 
4.1 in the report folder) that the first meeting which he had with me took 
place at his request.  They have already been supplied to Mr Pearson 
and to Janie, but they were unfortunately omitted from inclusion in the 
hearing documents at 5A in the report folder when Mr Pearson sent a 
paper copy of my response to the statements of Cllrs Guilford, Wyatt 
and Carmichael with his email of 29th June. 
 
These e-mails along with my response play an important part in 
rebutting what Cllr Guilford has said about why that meeting took place 
and the context.   I should be grateful if you would draw them to the 
attention of the hearing panel when it considers this matter. 
 
Regards 
 
Cllr Ian Cuthbertson 
 
 

 
From: Mark Scott <clerk@haxbytowncouncil.gov.uk>  
Sent: 18 June 2019 10:45 
To: Cllr. I. Cuthbertson <cllr.icuthbertson@york.gov.uk> 
Subject: Full Council Meeting 
 
 
Dear Ian 
 
I don’t know if you will receive an apology from elsewhere but I personally would like to apologies as 
an employee of Haxby Town Council for the way in which you were spoken to last night by one of 
our Councillors. I and I am sure others present were uncomfortable by the whole situation. I do 

Page 115

mailto:clerk@haxbytowncouncil.gov.uk
mailto:cllr.icuthbertson@york.gov.uk


Annex C 

 

know that the tirade to which you were exposed was not something that either I or our Chairman 
had been expecting and we were all caught unawares of the entire situation. I must say though that I 
thought you handled the situation with a great deal of dignity and I thank you for that. 
 
Kind regards 

Mark Scott 

Clerk to the Council 
Haxby Town Council 
01904 750378 

 
office@haxbytowncouncil.gov.uk 
www.haxbytowncouncil.gov.uk 
 
This communication is from Haxby Town Council 
 
The information contained within, and in any attachment(s), is confidential and 
legally privileged. It is for the exclusive use of the intended recipient(s). If you are not 
the intended recipient(s), please note that any form of distribution, copying or use of 
this communication, or the information within, is strictly prohibited and may be 
unlawful. Equally, you must not disclose all, or part, of its contents to any other 
person. 
 
If you have received this communication in error, please return it immediately to the 
sender, then delete and destroy any copies of it. 
 
Haxby Town Council disclaims any liability for action taken in reliance on the content 
of this communication. The views indicated are solely those of the author and, unless 
expressly confirmed, not those of Haxby Town Council. 
 

 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Mark Guilford <mark.guilford@hotmail.com> 
Sent: 06 July 2019 12:27 
To: Cllr. I. Cuthbertson <cllr.icuthbertson@york.gov.uk> 
Cc: Cllr. A. Hollyer <cllr.ahollyer@york.gov.uk>; Cllr. E. Pearson 
<cllr.epearson@york.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Haxby Town Council 
 
Ian 
 
Thursday the 11th is clear in my diary, would Costa Haxby be a 
convenient meeting place? 
 
Regards  
 
Mark  

Page 116

mailto:office@haxbytowncouncil.gov.uk
http://www.haxbytowncouncil.gov.uk/
mailto:mark.guilford@hotmail.com
mailto:cllr.icuthbertson@york.gov.uk
mailto:cllr.ahollyer@york.gov.uk
mailto:cllr.epearson@york.gov.uk


Annex C 

 

 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

 
On 6 Jul 2019, at 10:47, Cllr. I. Cuthbertson 
cllr.icuthbertson@york.gov.uk> wrote:  
 
Mark 
  
Thank you for the e-mail sent from your personal e-mail account on 
20/06. 
 
Clearly, the situation arising from the last Town Council meeting on 
17/06 will be difficult to put to rights and your responsibility as Chairman 
of the Town Council is to ensure that anything similar does not recur.  
However, a conversation over coffee to discuss possible ways forward 
can be arranged depending on our mutual availability.   My own current 
availability over the next two weeks is as follows: 
 
Tue 09/07 12.00-12.45 
Wed 10/07 08.00-09.00 
Thu 11/07 08.00-09.00 
 
Mon 15/07 13.30-14.30 
Tue 16/07 08.00-09.00 
Wed 17/07 08.00-09.00 
Thu 18/07 08.00-09.00 
Fri 19/07 08.00-09.00 
 
Unfortunately, no Haxby & Wigginton ward councillor will be able to 
attend the next Town Council meeting due to holidays and other 
commitments. 
 
Regards 
 
Ian 
 
Cllr Ian Cuthbertson 
Liberal Democrat Councillor - Haxby & Wigginton Ward City of York  
Council  
 
 
 

Page 117

mailto:cllr.icuthbertson@york.gov.uk


Annex C 

 

________________________________________ 
 
From: Mark Guilford [mark.guilford@hotmail.com] 
Sent: 20 June 2019 10:08 
To: Cllr. I. Cuthbertson 
Subject: Haxby Town Council 
 
Ian 
 
Over the past week I have had several discussions with Mr Scott as to 
how we can avoid having a repeat of the tone of discussion that 
occurred during the last council session. The result is that he and I both 
have agreed to set out the scope of any future discussion on that 
particular topic limiting it to only those matters that we as a Town 
Council can resolve. 
 
Firstly I would like to offer my personal apology for the tone of debate - 
the direction of the discussion caught both Mr Scott and I by surprise 
and as a result I didn’t react to as I probably should have to halt the 
discussion. I can only add that as a new chairman (and one who didn’t 
really expect to be in this position) I have a rather steep learning curve 
ahead of me in dealing with such matters. 
  
I would hope that this doesn’t damage our ability to communicate and 
work together as the view I have been expressing to my fellow 
councillors is that we need to be working more collaboratively with both 
Wigginton Parish and the CYC ward councillors. 
 
I would find it useful if perhaps we could sit down over a coffee and 
discuss ideas on how we can work more effectively with our ward team. 
 
Regards 
 
Mark L Guilford 
 

Page 118


	Agenda
	4 Complaint against Councillor Cuthbertson (City of York Council)
	Annex A - Report - Cuthbertson
	Annex B - Hearing Procedure
	Annex C1 - Hearing Statement - Cllr Ian Cuthbertson
	Annex C2 - Emails


